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Location: Hamilton Avenue between Ludlow Street and Morris
Street, Yonkers, New York
Present Owner: Carlin-Atlas Corp.

140 Huguenot Street
liew Rochelle, New York

Preéent Occupant:; Vacant

Present Use:

Significance:

None

Public School Number Three (P. S. #3) on Hamilton Avenue
in Yonkers is the earliest remaining puvlic school com=
plex in the city. Constructed in five major portions
that were designed by architects of local or regional
prominence, the complex was begun in 1834 and expanded

as the needs of the district changed. P. 3. #3 is illus-
trative of the growth and development of the neighborhood
and of the city of Yonkers.

The position of P. S. #3 in the city's physical and socizl
history is strengthened by the fact that the first par-
ents' group in the city - and the second suck group in
the nation - was organized by kFrs. Belle Smith-Bruce,
principal of #3 from 1893 to 1922, Graduates of the
school who achieved national prominence included actress
Constance Bennett and Brigadier General Frederick Lopkins.
The area bounded by Morris and Ludiow streets on Hamilton
Avenue, containing well-preserved mid- to¢ late-nineteenth
and early twentieth century residences in the French
Second Empire, Queen Anne and Classical Revival styles

in addition to the school, has been identified by the
Yonkers Planning Bureau's Historic Inventory Survey

(Phase I) as a potential historic district.

P. 8. #3 has played an irmportant role in the Hazilton
Avenue neighborhood and in the community as a whcle for
nearly one hundred years,

PART I. HISTORICAL INFORMATION

A, Physical History:

1.

Dztes of erection:

(Numbe§s correspond to those on the accompanying site
plan.

Building 1 - 1896 Building 3 - 1896
Building 2 - 1884, 1888 Building 4 - 1915
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. PART I. EISTORICAL INFORMATION (continued):
N A, Physical History (continued):
2. Architect:

The names of architects David and John Jardine, Charles
C. Chipman (Chapman), Douglas Smyth, and George Howard
Chamberlin are associated with the complex, The Board

of Education minutes record that in kay of 1883 an ap-
propriation of ten thousand dollars was authorized for
the purchase of a site and erection of a school. PFlans
and specifications for a one-story building, containing
two classrooms each twenty-seven feet in width and thirty
feet in depth, with “ample cloak rooms annexed", and a
hail fen feet wide and thirty-four fee? deep were sube-
rnitted by “kessrs. D. and J. Jardine", This description
refers to the original portion (completed_in 1884) of
Building 2 on the accompanying site plan.2 In 1888 two
nore rooms were added "to the back" of the 1884 struc-
ture, as was a "gecond story - unfinished". The design
of the 1388 alterations is attriobuted by several sources 3
to one "C. Chapman", who was propabliy Charles C. Chipmran,

' 1The firm of Jardine and Jardine, "one of the better known architectural
. offices in ¥Yew York froz the midw 10 the late-nineteenth century", was
- begun by David Jardine. A native Scot and the son of an architect-
‘puilder, Jardine trained under hig father and migrated to America at
the age of twenty. EXe first practiced in New York in association with
Ecwarda Thompson and later formed a partnership witih his trother John and
others. '
"During the eighties the firm of Jardine and Jardine acquired a
large and successful practice, credited with the design of several im-
portant buildings of the period..." Henry F. Withey and klsie Rathburn
_ Withey, ZBiographical Dictionary of American Architects, Deceased (los
Angelest: Hennesey and Ingalls, 1955; Facsimile bdition, 1970), pp. 321-22,

2That the first building in the complex is the structure marked "2" on
the site plan is confirmed by the 1895 Smyth blueprints (Building 2 is
labeled "Present Building"; Nos. 1 and % are each labeled "New Build-
ing"}, and by an 1889 Atlas of Yonkers showing Building 2 as the only
structure on the site, in essentially its current - 1982 -~ configuration.

5"0. Chapman" is also referred to as "C. C. Chapman". Withey lists only
a Cecil B, Chapwan who practiced ¢, 1900 in Minneapolis. Architects in
Practice: New York City, 1840-1900 lists no C. or C, C. Chapman but does
refer to "Charles C. Chipman", whose practice consisted largely of
schools, and whose representative works are given as “School No. 6,
Yonkers; Prospect Street School, Yonkers"., Dennis Steadman Francis for

' the Committee for the Preservation of Architectural Records, Architects
in Practice... (New York: COPAR, 1979). On P. 16 of Yonkers Illustrated,

. issued by the Department of Publicity of the Yonkers Board of Irade, n.d.,
is a photograph of Public School 6. Under the picture is the statement
"Remodeled by C. C. Chipman, Architect, New York"., P, 164 of the same
source pictures Public School No. 13, "Plans by C. C. Chipman, New York".
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. PART I, HISTORICAL INFORIZATION (continued)
A. Physical Eistory (continued):
2. Architect {continued):

Buildings 1 and 3 have also been atiributed to Chipman,
1896 Dblueprints exist, however, from the office of
"Douglas Smyth, Arch.", showing both structures, and
Snyth is confirmed as the designer by Board of Educa-
tion documentation.4

1899 appears in several sources as the date of addi-
tional construction at the site, sonetimes in connec=
tion with the name of"Chapman"., An 1898 Superinten-
dent's report referring to P. S. #3 as having “four-
teen classroors", and an 1890 Atlas of Yonkers showing
Buildings 1, 2, and 3 in place attest to the fact that
the first four major phases of construction had been
completed prior to 1839. The nature of whatever
changes may have taken place in that year is there-
fore unclear,

o confusion exists concerning either tihe date of coti-
struetion {1515) or the arcnitect (George Howard Cham-

. berlin) of Building 4. Listed in both Francis {(p. 21)
and Withey {p. 115%, Chamberlin was born in Englend in
1865, received his early education in lew York, and
entered the office of Robert l. Robertson as & student,
He settled in Yonkers and opened a practice there "early
in the century"., In 1913 he received the apgointment of
"Architect to the City Board of Zducation" and was pri-
marily responsible for the planning and design of Yecnkxers
schools until his retirement in 1934.

3. Original and Subsequent Owners:

The property was owned by the Yonkers Board of Education
from site scquisition in 1883 until 197¢, and by the
city of Yonkers from 1976 until 1921, 1In August of 1931,
the complex was purchased by the present owner, Cariin-
Atlas Corp.

ra

4Telephone conversation with Mrs. May Tyropolis, Historian, Yonkers Boargd
of Education, December 16, 1982. Withey does not list a Douglas Smyth,
Francis, Architects in Practice..., refers on p. 71 to "Douglass Smyth"

. who began practice in New York in 1871, was still practicing there in
1900, and who did "general work",
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HISTORICAL INFORMATIOH (continued)

o PART I.

A. Physical History (continued)
4, Builder, Contractor, Suppliers:
| Wo information is available for Buildings 1, 3, or 4. For

Building 2 (1884), the following was provided by lirs. Ty-
ropolis of the Yonkers Board of Education:

Carpenter - Eiram C. Barnes $2,989.00§
Mason - Joseph FPerry $4,000,00
Plumbing/Heating - John Fegan %$1,161.00)

5., Original Plans and Construction:

Ko information available on Buildings 2 and 43 1396
blueprints (partial) for Building 1 and 3 are in po-
ssession of current owner.

6. Alterations and Additions:

The first building on the site, the original portion of
Zuilding 2, was enlarged in 1888, Buildirngs 1 and 3
(189¢) and 4 (1915) represent additions {0 the complex.
Subsequent datable alterations include the cheanging of

. the windows in Buildings 1, 2 and 3 from the originzl
tvio-over-twoe double~hung wood sash type to aluminum
frames with a combination of plain and geometrically
patterned opaque plexiglass with operable casement
sections (1974).

3, Gbistorical Context:

Yonkers'! first School Number Three, constructed irn 18£0,
was in what is now the Mosholu section of the Bronix.
When Yonkers was incorporated in 1872, this area became
part of New York City. The school districts of Yonkers,
which had operated independently prior to 1872, continued
to do so until they were consolidated under one Board of
bducation in 1881, The earliest building in the present
Number Three complex was the first post-consolidation
structure erected by the school district.

During the late nineteenth century, Yonkers proved an at-
tractive location for industry due to proximity to New Yorx
City, ease of transportation, and availability of a power
source (the Saw Mill River). Companies contributing to

the growth of the city included the National Sugar Re-
finery, 1872; the Alexander Smith Carpet Mills, begun in
18763 and Otig Elevator Company, organized in 1898,2 The

.5A11 three were referred to in 1911 as "the largest in the worldr,

Yonkers: Next to the Largest City in the World (Yonkers Board of
Trade), p. 10
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HISTORICAL INFORMATION (continued)

B.

Eistorical Context (continued):

southwest section of Yonkers, served by P. S. #3, was close
to these industries and was easily accessible via Eroadwey
from New York City. As workers began to settle and prosper,
they bought or built homes between Broadway and the river,
and sent their children to P. S. #3. Originally kindergarten
through second grade only, the school eventually expanded
physically to accommodate students in kindergarten through
eighth grade.

By the 1950's, the city's first junior high school hed been
built and indusirial growth had slowed somewhat. The popu-
lation of the southeastern section of Yonkers stabilized as
the city oegan to expand eastward. The number of students
at ¥, S. #3, nowv contained in kindergerten through grade
six, also stabilized and ultimately declined as younger
farmilies chose to live elsewhere in the c¢ity. The district
closed the school in 197¢,
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. PART II. ARCEITECTURAL INFORMATION

A; General Statement
1. Architectural Character:

The four-building complex comprising Public School Ko. 7 in
Yonkers stylistically represents vernacular interpretations
of the Colonial Revival {Buildings 1 and 2), the Italianate
Revival(Building 3), and the Second Renaissance Revival
(Building 4).

A1} of the structures are well-detailed examples of late
nineteenth-early twentieth century masonry construction.
#itn stone foundations and brick load-bearing walls,
#yildings 1, 2, and 3 have bluestone trim; Building 4 is
trimmed witn sandstone and brick of a different characier
fror that of the primery building material. KRoofs are of
slate(Buildings 1, 2) or seamed metal. Interior elements
of note include staircases and pressed metal ceilings
(third floor) of Building 2; exposed truss framing with
hand graining, Building 3; and a gymnasium at the attic
level of Building 4 sheathed entirely (flioor, weils, angd
ceiling) in wood.

The major change on the exterior of the buildings consists
. of replacement windows {and the bricking up of others) on
Buildings 1, 2, and 3, Despite alterations, however, much
arcritectural character and many early elements remain
throughout, '

2. GCondition of Febric:

Exterior wells of buildinzs in the complex heave generally
been weli-maintained. Meny slates of the roci of Zuiiding 2
are broken or missing. The roofs of the other structures
appear to be in good condition,

Interior elements and materials have suffered from recent
vandalism, The destruction is greatest in Buildings 2 and 4,
where pipes and plurbing fixtures have been recoved; wire-
glass portions of metal dividing walls between hallways and
stairs have oeen badly damaged; blackboard slates and light
fixtures have been removed or darcaged; plaster and walloocard
partitions between classrooms and hallways have in some cases
been demolished, Water damage has caused plaster deterioration
and the buckling of some hardwood floors.

4Although accessible records offer some discrepancy in construction dates,
- it is clear that the first structure in the complex (the earliest portion
of Building 2 on the map) was erected in 1884 and enlarged in 1888,
Buildings 1 and 3 {see map) were standing when an 1896 Atlas of
Yonxers was pubiished, All sources agree that Building 4 was constructed

in 1915,
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@ 27 11, ARCHITECTURAL INFORMATION (continued)

B, Description of Exterior

1, Building 2

=B

Overall Dimensions:

79.5!

wide; 70' deep

(stair tower between Buildings 1 and 2:
35' wide; 14! deep)

Foundation:

Rough~-dressed stone, randomly coursed.

Walls:

Red tBrick with tluestone trim.

Structural 3ystems, Framing:

Mesonry load-pearing walis,

Porches, Stoops, Zalconies, Bulk eads:

(1) One stoop, centered at first story level on south
facade, Stairs, mnewel posts, railings, and balus~
ters all of metal., Sheltered by cantilevered copper
hood.

(2} TFour concrete steps, first story level, north facade
of stair tower., Railing, balusters, newel post of
retal.

Chirneys:

Ione

Openings:

(1) Doorways and Doors:

(a) One double door with transor - first story,
south facade of connecting wing between
Buildings 1 and 2. Boarded up.

(b) Single entrance door from porch described
e ?1)" avove, DBoarded up.

(¢) Single entrance door, top of steps described
"e (2)" above., Boarded up. :
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ARCEITECTURAL INFORMATION (contmued)

o paRT 11,
o

2

Ee

h.

Openings (contlnued).

(2)

Windows:

On the first, second, and third stories of all
facades, rectangular openings with segmentzlly
arched brick lintels and rectangular bluestone
sills. At basement level, square openings with
rectangular bluestone lintels and sills., Ori-
ginal wood=framed double hung two-over-iwo sash
replaced 1974 with combination of clear and opagque
geometrically patiterned plexiglass in aluminum
frames; operable portions are vertical or hori-
zontal casements., DBasemenrt openings boarded up
or filled with opague plexiglass or louvres.

On north facade of three-story connecting winz
between Buildings 1 and 2 is evidence of five
round-zarched openings, four with impost blocks,
now brickxed up., Those at the basement and firsi
story levels were entrances, closed in 1974;
window openings above were closed prior to 1974.

Roof:

(1)

(2)

(3)

Shape, Coverings:

Double garmbrel covered with red slate,

Cornice, Eaves:

Projecting metal cornice with return eaves.
Dormers:

Six shed-roofed dormers. Slate-covered cheeks,
tern metal roofs., Simple wood pilasters frame

windows grouped in pairs (side facades) or
threes (front facade).

Building Number 3

a.

Overall Dimensions:

a1t

wide; 40' deep

(stair tower between Buildings 2 and 3:
23 wide; 9' deep)
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ARCHITECTURAL INFORMATION(continued)

2.

Building Number 3 {continued)

b.

Foundations:

Rough-dressed stone, randomly coursed.

Walls:

Red brick with bluestone trim,

Structural System, Framing:

(1) Walls: masonry load-bearing

(2) Roof: exposed heavy timber truss syster
Porches, Stoops, Balconies, Buikheads:

(1) On east facade, metal stoop with square metal newel
posts, metal railings and balusters,

{2) ©On nortn facade, concrete steps and stoop; metal
pipe railings.

Chimneys:

Two exterior chimneys on east facade now closed up.
Six metal roof ventilators, four with louvred dope-
shaped elements.

Openings:
(1) Doorways and Doors:

(a) Single entrance door opening onto east facade
stoop descrived “e {1)" avbove, Boarded up.

(b) Double entrance door with nine wire-glass lights
and eight-light wire-glass transom.

(2) Windows:

Rectangular openings with plain rectangular bluestone
sills and lintels; three on east facade, two on north.
Original wood-framed double hung two-over-two sash re-
placed 1974 with combination of clear and opaque geo-
metrically patterned plexiglass in aluminum frames,

Operable sections are horizontal casements. A portion
of one east facade opening has been filled with louvres.
The original clear glass in two banks of skylights

(four per set) was replaced in 1974 with wire-glass, .
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ARCHITECTURAL INFORMATION (continued)

R | I-‘ART. 17,
@ -

2.

Building Number 3 {continued)
h. Roof:
Shepe, Covering:

Hipped, covered with seamed metal.

Building Funmber 4
a. Overall Dimensions:

76.5' wide; 68.5' deep
b. Founcdation:

Rough-dressed stone, randomly coursed,
¢, Wwalls:

Red brick with sandstone and brick trim.
e. Structural System, Framing:

Masonry load-bearing walls.
f. Chimneys:
(1) Plain rectangular brick chimney.

(2) EKound metal stack, attached to rear (west)
facade,

g- Openings:
(1) Doorways and Doors:
(2) Street level, south facade:

Double entrance door, round-arched brick lintel,
stone sill. Boarded up.

(b} Street level, east facade:

Double wood entrance door, paneled below,
glass above. DBoarded up.

(c) Entrance to basement, west facade:

good frame, three-light transom above metal
oor,
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. PART II. ARCHITECTURAL INFORMATION (continued)

3.

Building Furber 4 (continued)

f.

Openings (continued):

(2) ‘Viindows:
A1l openings rectangular., Flat-arched keystoned
srooth brick lintels with voussoirs, Sills of
sandstone or brick. Windows wood-framed with

either one-over-one double hung sash or combina-
tion double hung and casement sash,

Roof:
Shape, Covering:

Shallow hipped, metal covered.

C. Description of Interior:

1.

Buiiding 2

a,

Filoor Flans:
See attached,
Stairways:

Metal-covered concrete risers; metal stringers decor-
ated with widely-spaced paterase; iron newels, souare

in section with shallow recessed panels and stylized

paterae; decoratively wrought iron balusters less or-
nate on the rear than on the main stair,

Flooring:

Hardwood, narrow (14") boards in classrooms, storage
areas and hallways, covered with vinyl in main (first
floor) hallway. Bathroom floors of terrazo or ceramic
tile.

Wall and Ceiling Finishes:

(1) Vvalls- primarily plaster on wood lath., Original
wainscoting on stair walls replaced with Roman
brick. Some plaster board used for storage area
partitions., Walls dividing main hallways and
stair wells are metal and wire-glass; bathroom
walls have ceramic tile wainscoting,

(2) Ceilings ~ plaster on first and second floors;
pressed metal on third floor.
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PART I1, ARCHITECTURAL INFORMATION (continued):

. G. Description of Interior {continued):

.

Building 2 {continued)

€.

Openings:
(1) Doorways and Doors:

First floor doorways are simple in character; doors
are replacements without detail. Second and third
floor interior doorways have transoms and incised
surrounds with decorative corner blocxs; doors are
paneled.

(2) Windows:
A11 openings are plain.

Decorative Features and Trio:

Interior elexents are prirarily funciional, Deccraiion
consists of woodworii and, in some cases (izird floor
ceiling, for example), finishes,

Herdware:

Brass throughout., Hardware on second and third fioors
aspears to ve original, or early; on first fioor, hard-
ware is primerily of mid-iwentieth century cnarzcter.

hechanical rtguipment:
(1) Heating, Air Conditioning, Ventilation:

Heating at the time the school was closed was pro-
vided by oil-fired steam radiators., Some first
floor classrooms originally had working fireplaces;
none were working at the time of the closing and
some had been covered up. (In the basement space
marked "Fan Room" on thke 1966 blueprints is a large
(diameter approximately eight feet) metal wheel
stamped "Huyett & Smith Manufacturing Co". Patent
date: March, 1885.)

(2) Lighting;
Berlier fixtures have been replaced, primerily by
fluorescent lights. Some incandescent bulbs in
storage areas,

(3) Plumbing:
Copper pipes, ceramic fixtures,
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ARCHITECTURAL INFORMATION (continued):

® PART II,

C. Description of Interior (continued):

2.

Building 3

a.

Floor Plan:

See attached.

Flooring:

Eardwood boards, 6" wide,

wall and Ceiling Finishes:

Wzlls, originally plaster and narrow Deaded wood wains-
coting, are all now plaster on lath. Ceiling is dari-
stained narrow beaded boarding following configuration
of structure's hipped roof.

Openings:

A1l window and door cpenings are extremely simple in
character,

Decorative Features and Trim:
Exposed dark-stained roof truss systiem is hand grainea,

Interest is also provided by the east and west wall pi-
lasters and the simple Art Deco treatment of the starge,

Hardware:

Brass, primarily of mid-twentieth century character,

Mechanical Equipment:

(1) Heating, Air Conditioning, Ventilation:
This building has its own electrically-powered
heating and air conditioning system with base-
board radiators and large wall vents in the pi-
lasters,

(2) Lighting:

Fluorescent.
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PART 11, ARCHITECTURAL INFORMATION (continued)

C. Description of Interior (continued):

-3, Building 4

.

Floor Plans:
See attached,
Stairways:

Risers, steps and stringers are of painted metal,
lioclded razilings are of varnished oak. Decorative
iron newel posts are chamfered and topped with round
finials. Balusters are decoratively wrought iron.

Flooring:

Halls, classrooms, and storage areas: narrow hLardwood
boards throughout. Bathrooxzs: plain terrazo, Deccra-
tive terrazo in a portion of the passagewzy between
suildings 1 and 4.

Vall and Ceiling Finishes:

Ciassroom and hallwey walls on first, second, and third
floors are finished wita plaster a2bove the chair rail or
window i1l level; masonite below,., Ceilings are also
plaster on these floors. At the attic level, the gymna-
sium walls are entirely sheathed in narrow dark-stained
boards (vertical below chair rail, norizontal abdove).
The gymnasium ceiling (including beams) is covered with
the same narrow boarding. In the space across tre hall
from the gymnasium, walls are covered with a coztination
of wood wainscoting and plaster, Roman brick serves as
wainscoting on the stairs,

Openings:

(1) Doorways have maded surrounds; doors are paneled.
(2) VWindow surrounds are molded.

Decorative Features and Trim:

Interest is provided by the dark-stained molded woodwork,
including chair rails and baseboards; and by the grills
and surrounds of heating venis. Metal devices protecting
the gymnasium lighting fixtures are also decorative.

Hardware:

Brass throughout, primarily original with the exception
of crash bars on some doors.
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PART II. ARCHITECTURAL INFORMATIOEK (continued)

C. Description of Interior (continued):
3., Building 4 (continued)
- h., KMechanical Equipment:
(1) Heating, A4ir Conditioning, Ventilation:

Building 4 is heated by an oil-fired hot water
system with exposed pipe coils in each room.

(2) Lighting:

Fluorescent in primary spaces, first, second,
third, and part of fourth floor; incandescent in
gvonasium and secondary spaces (storase areas,
ete,

D. Site:
1. General Seiting and Orientation:

The P.S. #% complex is located in the southwest section of
the lower Westchester County city of Yonkers. Approxima-
tely one~half mile east of the Hudson River and one mile
north of the southern limits of New Yor.s City, the imme-
diate neighborhood is primarily residential in character
with houses dating from the late nineteenth and twentieth
centuries. Architectural styles represented include the
French Second Empire, Queen Anne, and Classical Revival,
Yonrers Professionai Hospital is one block northn of thre
schiool sitej; St. Joseph's kedical Center, two bliocks west,
South Broadway, one of the ¢ity's main thorcughfares, is
one block east; land use on this sireet is mixed resi-
dential and small scale commercial,

The individual buildings with the grouping are all
oriented east, toward Hamilton Avenue. The site slopes
up, awvay from Hamilton Avenue, and drops off sharply be-
hind Building 3.

2., Historic Landscape Design:

No atterpts at landscape design are evident or Trecorded.
Trees, primarily deciduous, line the eastern boundary of
the site., One large maple tree is incorporated inio the
playground area south of the buildings. Other landscape
elements include a fieldstone retaining wall at the eastern
and western boundaries., The wall has a2 concrete coping
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PART II. ARCHITECTURAL INFORMATION (continued)

- D. Site (continued):
| 2. Historic Landscape Design (continued):

and on the east is topped by a wrought iron fence. A
second stone wall divides the building site from the
playground area on the south, forms the southern founda-
tion wall of Building %, and separates the school complex
fror adjacent properties to the north. OUn the south, west,
and north, the wall is topped with a chain link fence; a
sirilar fence sections the playground into activity areas.

3.. Outbuildings:

The complex has no outbuildings, but the incinerator,
located in an asphalt-covered area south of Building 2

and west of Building 4, is of interest, On an octagonzl
concrete base, the vari-colored stack of fire brick reaches
a height of approximately five stories., The mouth of the
stack is defined by corbelling. The incinerator is ac-
cessed through an iron fire door on the north. Some of

_ the raised iron lettering has worn off, but enough remains
o 80 indicate that the door came from a foundry in Kkevw York
. ity.

 PART IIX, SOURCES OF INFORHATION

A, Original Architectural Drawings:
ko original drawings were located, 3Blueprints accessiole were:

1. 189¢ - Plans and elevations, Buildings 1, 2, and 3, Building
2 referred to as "Present Building"; 1 and 3 were la-
belled "Wew Building®”. Blueprints stamped with the
name of "Douglas Smyth, Arch."; sore bear the signa-
ture of "Robert W, Stewart",

. 1940 - Plan, Korth Elevation, and details, Buiiding 3.
Office of A, G. Corkin, R.A., Deputy Superinten-
dent, Buildings and Maintenance,.

1966 - Basement and Third Floor plans, Buildings 1, 2, and 4,
Drawn by John B. Claremont, Superintendent of Build-
ings and Grounds.

1974 - Some elevations and details of Buildings 1, 2, and
3. Drawn by Lewis A. Shoenback, Architect.

éll are in the possession of the property owner, Carlin-Atlas
OIp
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PART I1II. SOURCES OF INFORMATION {continued)

B, Parly Views:
None located.

C. Interviews:

Mrsg, May Tyropolis, Historian, Yonkers Board of Education
November 24, 1982; December 1¢&, 1882

D. Bibliograzhy:
1. Primary Sources:
None accessible.
2. Unpublished Sources:
a. Building-Structure Inventory Form - P.3. #3
Division for Historic Preservation
New Yorx State Parks and Recreation
Albany, Kew York
Prepared by lichael P, Rebic, Architecturali Preserva-
tion Consultant to the Yonkers Planning Zureau, -
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